
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 REGULAR AGENDA   

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation  
Thursday, June 15, 2023 @ 4:30 PM  

390 Bay Street, Suite 405 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Resolution #23-035 
Moved By: S. Hopkin 
Seconded By:  S. Spina 
 

2.1  “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Agenda for the June 15, 2023 Sault Ste. Marie 
Housing Corporation Board meeting be approved as presented.” 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES / ACCOUNTS 
 

Resolution #23-036 
Moved By: M. Bruni  
Seconded By: J. Hupponen  
 

4.1  “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Minutes from the Sault Ste. Marie Housing 
Corporation Board (SSMHC) meeting dated May 18, 2023 be adopted as 
recorded.” 
 

5. MANAGERS REPORTS  

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation  
  

District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services 
Administration Board 

Conseil d’Administration des Services du District Sault Ste. Marie 
Zhawenimi-Anokiitaagewin 

 
 



SSMHC Agenda June 15, 2023  2 
 

 
CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
Resolution #23-037 
Moved By: A. Caputo 
Seconded By: S. Hopkin 

 
5.1 “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 

accept the recommendation of the Finance Committee and approve the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 as 
prepared by KPMG. ”     
 
Resolution #23-038 
Moved By: S. Hopkin  
Seconded By: S. Spina 

 
5.2 “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 

accept the June 15, 2023 Q1 Financial Update Report of the Director of 
Corporate Services as Information” 

 
Resolution #23-039 
Moved By: M. Bruni  
Seconded By: S. Spina 

 
5.3      “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation divest itself 

of the vacant property located 162 Dennis Street in Sault Ste. Marie to Habitat 
for Humanity Sault Ste. Marie and Area (HFHSSMA) for $1.00 for the purpose 
of supplying affordable home ownership”.   

 
Resolution #23-040 
Moved By: J. Hupponen  
Seconded By: S. Hopkin 
 

 
5.4 “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 

now enter into closed session.” 
 

Resolution #23-041 
Moved By: E. Palumbo 
Seconded By: S. Spina  

 
5.5 “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 

now return to open session.” 
 
 



SSMHC Agenda June 15, 2023  3 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Resolution #23-042 
Moved By:  A. Caputo  
Seconded By: M. Bruni  
 

7.1  “BE IT RESOLVED THAT we do now adjourn” 
 

NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Thursday, July 20, 2023 at 4:30 PM 



 
 
 
 
 

MEETING MINUTES  
Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation 
Thursday, May 18, 2023 @ 4:30 PM  

390 Bay Street, Suite 405 

1. CALL TO ORDER at 5:47pm

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Resolution #23-028
Moved By: S. Hopkin
Seconded By:  S. Spina

2.1  “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Agenda for the May 18, 2023 Sault Ste.
Marie Housing Corporation Board meeting be approved as presented.”

Carried

3. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

4. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES / ACCOUNTS

Resolution #23-029
Moved By: M. Bruni
Seconded By: J. Hupponen

4.1  “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Minutes from the Sault Ste. Marie Housing
Corporation Board (SSMHC) meeting dated April 20, 2023 be adopted as 
recorded.” 

Carried 

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation 
District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services 

Administration Board 
Conseil d’Administration des Services du District Sault Ste. Marie 

Zhawenimi-Anokiitaagewin 



SSMHC Meeting Minutes May 18, 2023 2 

5. MANAGERS REPORTS

HOUSING SERVICES

Resolution #23-030
Moved By: A. Caputo
Seconded By: S. Hopkin

5.1   “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 
accepts the purposed purchasing policy in accordance with the tender award 
committee is recommending to award PTC 2023-02 Window, Door & Hardware 
Replacements at Second Line West Townhouses, to 1704686 Ontario Limited / 
KC Roofing and Siding for the lump sum price of $556,978.40.   
Carried 

Resolution #23-031 
Moved By: M. Bruni  
Seconded By: S. Spina 

5.2     “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation Board 
(SSMHC) accept this report in accordance to the Sault Ste. Marie Housing 
Corporation (SSMHC) purchasing policy Social Services has awarded PTC 
2023-06 Energy Management System (EMS) to Demtroys Technology Inc. for 
heating and control monitoring for the properties at 49 St. Mary’s River Drive 
and 137 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie for a total of $95,299.77 including non-
recoverable PST. 

Carried 

Resolution #23-032 
Moved By: J. Hupponen  
Seconded By: S. Hopkin 

5.3 “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 
now enter into closed session.” 
Carried 

Resolution #23-033 
Moved By: E. Palumbo 
Seconded By: S. Spina 

5.4 “BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC) 
now return to open session.” 



SSMHC Meeting Minutes May 18, 2023 3 

Carried 

6. NEW BUSINESS

None

7. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution #23-034
Moved By:  A. Caputo
Seconded By: M. Bruni

7.1  “BE IT RESOLVED THAT we do now adjourn”
Carried

Adjourned at 6:55pm
NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Thursday, June 15, 2023 at 4:30 PM



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     

 
AUTHOR: David Petersson 
 
DATE: June 15, 2023 
 
RE: Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Finance Committee recommends the approval of the Sault Ste. Marie Housing 
Corporation (SSMHC) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 as prepared by KPMG. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The annual audit is a requirement in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of 
Regulation 367/11 Section 103 (2) of the Housing Services Act 2011 (Ontario). 
 
SUMMARY/OVERVIEW 
The audit fieldwork commenced the week of March 15, 2023. Based upon the materiality 
set by KPMG, the audit consisted of examining a sample of transactions for the 2022 
fiscal year as well as discussions with management on matters applicable to the audit 
year. 
 
The Finance Committee met and reviewed the Audited Financial Statements at a 
committee meeting held on June 6, 2023. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT 
The results of the audit for the year ended December 31, 2022 aligns the Sault Ste. Marie 
Housing Corporation with the three pillars of the Strategic Plan, that being Organizational 
Excellence, Service Delivery, and Community Partnerships. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications for the SSMHC. 
 
 
 
CONCLUSION 

 
 

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING 
CORPORATION  

 
BOARD REPORT 

 
 
 



RE: Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
Page 2 
DATE: June 15, 2023 
 
As noted on the Audited Financial Statements, Independent Auditors’ Report, KPMG 
issued a “clean” unqualified audit opinion as stated below: 
 
“In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Entity as at 
December 31, 2022 and its consolidated results of operations, its consolidated changes 
in net debt and its consolidated cash flows and its consolidated remeasurement losses 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.” 
 
Respectfully submitted, Approved by: 
 

 
David Petersson Mike Nadeau 
Director of Corporate Services Chief Executive Officer 



Consolidated Financial Statements of 

SAULT STE. MARIE  
HOUSING CORPORATION 

And Independent Auditors' Report thereon 

Year ended December 31, 2022 

DRAFT



Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management and have been prepared in 
compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
A summary of the significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated 
financial statements.  The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the 
use of estimates based on management’s judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the 
current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. 

The Corporation’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and 
recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial 
information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
These systems are monitored and evaluated by management. 

The Board of Directors meets with management and the external auditors to review the 
consolidated financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control 
matters prior to their approval of the consolidated financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external 
auditors appointed by the Corporation.  The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines 
their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Corporation’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

__________________________________ _________________________________

Chief Executive Officer Director of Corporate Services 

DRAFT



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Directors of Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sault Ste. Marie Housing 
Corporation (the Entity), which comprise: 

 the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022

 the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated operating surplus for the
year then ended

 the consolidated statement of change in net debt for the year then ended

 the consolidated statement of remeasurement gain (losses) for the year then ended

 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements''). 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2022 
and its consolidated results of operations, its consolidated changes in net debt and its 
consolidated cash flows and its consolidated remeasurement losses for the year then ended 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
''Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements'' 
section of our auditors' report.  

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

DRAFT



Page 2 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

DRAFT



Page 3 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease
to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group Entity to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.  We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Sault Ste. Marie, Canada 

June XX, 2023 

DRAFT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,940,075      $ 6,591,707       
Accounts receivable 2,162,533      853,306          
Interest rate swaps 3,965,717      - 
Due from District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services

Administration Board 1,054,650      1,306,883       
11,122,975    8,751,896       

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,924,081      1,943,565       
Deferred revenue (note 3) 44,005           145,606          
Construction credit facility (note 4) 3,254,635      - 
Interest rate swaps - 1,000,627
Long-term debt (note 5) 9,644,999      9,904,759

16,867,720    12,994,557     

Net financial liabilities (5,744,745)     (4,242,661)      

Non-financial assets

Tangible capital assets (note 6) 41,436,960    29,135,170     
Prepaid expenses 377,503         58,889            

41,814,463    29,194,059     

Commitments (note 10)

Accumulated surplus (note 7) $ 36,069,718    $ 24,951,398     

Accumulated surplus is comprised of:
Accumulated operating surplus 32,104,001    25,952,025     
Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) 3,965,717      (1,000,627)      

$ 36,069,718    $ 24,951,398     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board:

_______________________________  Director

_______________________________  Director

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION

1

DRAFT



Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Operating Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 Actual Actual
Budget 2022 2021

(note 12)

Revenue:
District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services

Administration Board (note 9) $ 2,286,773     $ 9,652,504     $ 8,278,153     
Rental 5,211,977     5,202,478     4,781,844     
Government of Canada funding -                    200,000        1,643,427     
Interest 16,521          124,619        25,576          
Miscellaneous 49,965          58,536          171,861        

7,565,236     15,238,137   14,900,861   

Expenses:
Building repairs and maintenance 1,902,300     2,002,873     1,861,494     
Utilities 1,920,000     1,762,167     1,710,141     
Municipal property taxes 1,290,000     1,463,318     1,343,217     
Program operations 169,800        1,099,701     374,951        
Amortization of capital assets 974,693        974,693        820,492        
Building capital 581,335        628,342        682,314        
Grounds maintenance 214,550        345,910        300,313        
Mortgage interest 252,516        283,600        268,443        
Insurance 314,000        254,201        331,712        
Bad debts 105,000        219,469        201,864        
Professional fees 27,500          40,197          46,286          
Interest and bank charges 11,570          11,690          11,118          

7,763,264     9,086,161     7,952,345     

Annual operating surplus (deficit) (198,028)       6,151,976     6,948,516     

Accumulated operating surplus, beginning of year 25,952,025   25,952,025   19,003,509   

Accumulated operating surplus, end of year $ 25,753,997   $ 32,104,001   $ 25,952,025   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 

Total expenses

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION

2

DRAFT



Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 Actual Actual
Budget 2022 2021

(note 12)

Annual surplus (deficit) $ (198,028)     $ 6,151,976     $ 6,948,516      

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (776,665)     (13,276,483)  (3,903,648)     
Amortization of tangible capital assets -              974,693        820,492         

(974,693)     (6,149,814)    3,865,360      

Acquisition of prepaid expense -              (377,503)       (58,889)          
Use of prepaid expenses 58,889          -                 
Change in net debt excluding

net remeasurement gains (losses) (974,693)     (6,468,428)    3,806,471      

Remeasurement gains (losses) -              4,966,344     (587,580)        

Change in net debt (974,693)     (1,502,084)    3,218,891      

Net debt, beginning of year (4,242,661)  (4,242,661)    (7,461,552)     

Net debt, end of year $ (5,217,354)  $ (5,744,745)    $ (4,242,661)     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION

3

DRAFT



Consolidated Statement of Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Accumulated remeasurement losses, beginning of year $ (1,000,627)  $ (413,047)     

Unrealized gain (losses) attributed to:
Derivative - interest rate swaps 4,966,344   (587,580)     

Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses), end of year $ 3,965,717   $ (1,000,627)  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION

4

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 6,151,976       $ 6,948,516       
Items not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 974,693          820,492          
7,126,669       7,769,008       

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,309,227)      305,121          
Due from District of Sault Ste. Marie Social

Services Administration Board 252,233          (187,108)         
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,980,516       685,715          
Deferred revenue (101,601)         83,911            
Prepaid expenses (318,614)         (58,889)           

Net change in cash from operating activities 7,629,976       8,597,758       

Capital activities:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (13,276,483)    (3,903,648)      

Financing activities:
Proceeds from construction loan 3,254,635       -    
Long-term debt principal repayments (259,760)         (470,906)         

Net change in cash from financing activities 2,994,875       (470,906)         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (2,651,632)      4,223,204       

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 6,591,707    2,368,503       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 3,940,075       $ 6,591,707       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

6 

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (the "Corporation") was incorporated in the Province of Ontario 
on December 14, 2000. The objects of the Corporation state that the Corporation will provide for 
accommodation to persons of low or modest income and to persons with special needs.  The Corporation 
is exempt from income tax under section 149(1)(d.5) of the Income Tax Act as a municipal corporation. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation are prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for government organizations 
as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants 
of Canada.  Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Corporation are as follows: 

(a) Basis of accounting: 

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenue as they are earned and measurable.  
Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods 
or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(b) Reporting entities: 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and 
accumulated surplus of 2733106 Ontario Inc. Inter-organization transactions and balances 
between these organizations have been eliminated. 

(c) Financial instruments: 

All financial instruments are initially recorded on the statement of financial position at fair value. 

All investments, if any, held in equity instruments that trade in an active market are recorded at 
fair value. Management has elected to record investments at fair value as they are managed 
and evaluated on a fair value basis. Freestanding derivative instruments that are not equity 
instruments that are quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value.  The 
long term debt is recorded at cost and the related interest rate swap agreement is recorded at 
fair value. 

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and 
losses until they are realized, when they are transferred to the statement of operations. 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured subsequently 
at fair value are expensed as incurred. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

7 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Financial instruments (continued): 

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis.  Where a decline in fair 
value is determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is recognized in the 
statement of operations and any unrealized gain is adjusted through the statement of 
remeasurement gains and losses.  On sale, the statement of remeasurement gains and losses 
associated with that instrument are reversed and recognized in the statement of operations. 

Financial instruments are classified into fair value hierarchy Levels 1, 2 or 3 for the purposes of 
describing the basis of the inputs used to determine the fair market value of those amounts 
recorded a fair value, as described below: 

Level 1 – Fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 – Fair value measurements are those derived from market-based inputs other than 
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 

Level 3 – Fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include 
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. 

All financial instruments are Level 1 except for the interest rate swap which is Level 2.  

(d) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the 
provision of services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not 
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

i. Tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, 
less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 

Asset Useful Life – Years 
 

Buildings 40 - 60 
Furniture and equipment 5 
 
 

Amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.  Assets under 
construction are not amortized until the asset is available for use. 

ii. Contributions of tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date 
of receipt and are recorded as revenue.  

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

8 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents are represented by cash on hand, cash on deposit in chartered 
banks and investments that mature within three months. 

(f) Reserves: 

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board of Directors, are set aside in reserves or reserve 
funds for future operating and capital purposes.  Transfers to and/or from the reserves and 
reserve funds are an adjustment to the respective fund when approved. 

(g) Revenue recognition: 

The Corporation recognizes revenue on accommodation charges on a monthly accrual basis 
when collection of the relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement 
exists and the amount is fixed or determinable.  Other income is recorded when received or 
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is 
reasonably assured. 

Subsidy revenue is recognized in accordance with the requirements of the Housing Services 
Act, 2011. 

(h) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the carrying value of 
tangible capital assets, employee future benefits and valuation allowances for receivables and 
Canada – Ontario Affordable Housing Program Loans.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  These estimates are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, 
they are reported in the statement of operations in the year in which they become known. 

2. Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted: 

Section PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation, PS 3041, Portfolio Investments, PS 3280, 

Asset Retirement Obligations, PS 3450, Financial Instruments, are effective for fiscal years 
beginning on or after April 1, 2022. While early adoption is permitted, all four of the standards must 
be adopted in the same year except for PS 3280. PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation 

includes the addition of a new statement outlining re-measurement gains and losses. PS 3041, 
Portfolio Investments provides guidance on how to account for and report portfolio investments. PS 
3280 Asset Retirement Obligations addresses the reporting of legal obligations associated with the 

retirement of tangible capital assets. PS 3450, Financial Instruments provides guidance on the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments including derivative 
instruments. The Corporation has not yet adopted these standards or determined the effect on the 

consolidated financial statements.  

 

 

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

9 

2. Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted (continued): 

Section PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 

1, 2022.  This section includes guidance on deferral and amortization of unrealized gains and losses, 
hedge accounting and separation of realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses. 
The Corporation has not yet adopted these standards or determined the effect on the consolidated 

financial statements.  

Section PS 3400, Revenue is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023, early 
adoption is permitted.  This section establishes standards on how to account for and report on 

revenue. Specifically, it differentiates between revenue arising from transactions that include 
performance obligations and transactions that do not have performance obligations. The 
Corporation  has not yet adopted this standard or determined the effect on the consolidated financial 

statements.  

3. Deferred revenue: 

Deferred revenue consists of Social Services Relief Funding received from Ministry of Municipal 
Affairs and Housing to support services that address the impacts of COVID-19 on vulnerable 
Ontarians. These amounts will be recognized as revenue when the related expense is incurred. 
 

  2022 2021 
 
Balance, beginning of year $ 145,606 $ 61,695 
Contributions received during the year  653,558  223,112 
Contributions recognized as revenue during the year  (755,159)  (139,201) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 44,005 $ 145,606 

 

4. Construction credit facility: 

The construction credit facility is authorized to a maximum of $13,900,000 (2021 - $13,900,000), is 
repayable on demand, has interest calculated at bank prime minus 0.50% and is secured by a 
borrowing resolution. At December 31, 2022, the amount drawn against this facility is $3,254,635 
(2021 - $Nil). The Corporation intends to convert the facility to a term loan, not to exceed 35 years, 
upon completion of the related capital project. 

The Corporation has entered into an interest rate derivative agreement to manage the volatility of 
the interest rate on this facility. The Corporation has converted floating rate debt to fixed rate debt, 
equal to 3.38%. The agreement expires February 2059. See note 4a. 

Interest of $35,918 (2021 – $Nil) relating to the construction credit facility has been included in 

expenses on the consolidated statement of operations. 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

10 

5. Long-term debt: 
 

 2022 2021 
 
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, various 

debentures, interest rates varying from 6.09% to 6.34%,  
annual payments totaling $257,264 due December 2023,  
secured by real property $ 17,139 $ 40,014 

2.47% mortgage payable in monthly instalments of 
$11,812, including interest, due June 2050, secured 
by land and building in Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario (a)  2,825,984  2,896,882 

2.56% mortgage payable in monthly instalments of 
$29,904, including interest, due July 2050, secured 
by land and building in Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario (a)  5,953,740  6,097,918 

2.29% mortgage payable in monthly instalments of 
$3,459, including interest, due November 2050, secured 
by land and building in Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario (a)  848,136  869,945 

 

  $ 9,644,999 $ 9,904,759 
 

Interest of $247,682 (2021 – $268,443) relating to long-term debt has been included in expenses 

on the consolidated statement of operations. 

Principal repayments required for the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 
 
 

2023 $ 260,044 
2024 249,077 
2025 255,405 
2026 261,896 
2027 268,549 
Thereafter 8,350,028 

 

  $ 9,644,999 
 

The Corporation is approved for a $13,900,000 mortgage which was not drawn upon at December 
31, 2022. The Corporation has entered into an interest rate swap contract for this mortgage. See 
note 4a. 

 

(a) To reduce the interest rate cash flow risk on the mortgages, the Corporation has entered into 
interest rate swap contracts that entitles the Corporation to receive interest at floating rates on 
the notional principal amount and obliges it to pay interest at fixed rates of 2.47%, 2.56%, 2.29% 

and 3.38% respectively over the entire terms of the mortgages.  The fair value of the interest 
rate swaps at December 31, 2022 are an asset $3,965,717 (2021 – liability of $1,000,704)). 

  

DRAFT



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2022

6.  Tangible capital assets:

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Disposals and December 31,

Cost 2021 Additions Transfers 2022

Land $ 3,429,683       72,051         -                    $ 3,501,734      
Buildings 28,855,906     1,612,524    -                    30,468,430    
Furniture and equipment 43,016            -               (43,016)             -                
Construction-in-progress 2,367,362       11,591,908  -                    13,959,270    

Total $ 34,695,967     13,276,483  (43,016)             $ 47,929,434    

Balance at Balance at
Accumulated December 31, Amortization December 31,
Amortization 2021 Expense Disposals 2022

Land $ -                  -               -                    $ -                
Buildings 5,517,781       974,693       -                    6,492,474      
Furniture and equipment 43,016            -               (43,016)             -                

Total $ 5,560,797       974,693       (43,016)             $ 6,492,474      

Net book value, Net book value,
December 31, December 31,

2021 2022

Land $ 3,429,683       $ 3,501,734      
Buildings 23,338,125     23,975,956    
Furniture and equipment -                  -                
Construction-in-progress 2,367,362       13,959,270    

Total $ 29,135,170     $ 41,436,960    

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION

11

DRAFT



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2022

6.  Tangible capital assets (continued):

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Disposals and December 31,

Cost 2020 Additions Transfers 2021

Land $ 3,374,734       54,949         -                    $ 3,429,683      
Buildings 27,374,569     1,481,337    -                    28,855,906    
Furniture and equipment 43,016            -               -                    43,016           
Construction-in-progress -                  2,367,362    -                    2,367,362      

Total $ 30,792,319     3,903,648    -                    $ 34,695,967    

Balance at Balance at
Accumulated December 31, Amortization December 31,
Amortization 2020 Expense Disposals 2021

Land $ -                  -               -                    $ -                
Buildings 4,697,289       820,492       -                    5,517,781      
Furniture and equipment 43,016            -               -                    43,016           

Total $ 4,740,305       820,492       -                    $ 5,560,797      

Net book value, Net book value,
December 31, December 31,

2020 2021

Land $ 3,374,734       $ 3,429,683      
Buildings 22,677,280     23,338,125    
Furniture and equipment -                  -                
Construction-in-progress -                  2,367,362      

Total $ 26,052,014     $ 29,135,170    

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION

12

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

13 

7.   Accumulated surplus: 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as follows: 
 

  2022 2021 
 
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 41,436,960 $ 29,135,170  
Operating fund 2,013,613 5,417,972 
Unfunded long-term debt and construction credit facility (12,899,634) (9,904,759) 
Reserves 1,553,062 1,303,642 
Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses) 3,965,717 (1,000,627) 
 

  $ 36,069,718 $ 24,951,398 
 

Allocation of annual surplus: 
 

  2022 2021 
 
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 12,301,790 $ 3,083,156 
Operating fund (3,404,359) 3,280,055 
Unfunded long-term debt and construction credit facility (2,994,875) 470,906 
Reserves 249,420 313,573 
Remeasurement gains (losses) 4,966,344 (587,580) 
 

  $ 11,118,320 $ 6,360,936 
 

8. Reserves: 
 

  January 1, Transfers Transfers December 31, 
  2022 to from 2022 

 
Set aside for specific purposes by the Corporation: 

Reserves: 
Replacement reserve  $ 590,069 $ 132,025 $ –  $ 722,094 
Affordable Home Pilot Program  713,573 100,000 (124,958)   688,615 
Depressed Housing Program  –  227,975 (85,622)   142,353 

2022 balances  $ 1,303,642  $ 460,000 $(210,580) $ 1,553,062 
 

2021 balances  $ 990,069  $ 803,178 $ (489,605) $ 1,303,642 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

14 

9. District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services Administration Board revenue: 

Funding from District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services Administration Board consists of 
the following: 
 

  2022 2021 
 
Subsidy $ 2,235,449 $ 2,772,064 
Building capital funding  6,171,896  5,038,583 
Affordable Home Pilot Program  100,000  –   
COVID-19 funding  755,159  77,506 
Rent  390,000  390,000 
 

  $ 9,652,504 $ 8,278,153 

 

10. Commitments: 

The Corporation issued letters of guarantee through its financial institution to provide guarantees to 
a certain vendor.  The outstanding letters of guarantee amounted to $2,500 (2021 – $25,000). 

11. Financial risks and concentration of risk: 

(a) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely 
basis or at a reasonable cost.  The Corporation manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its 
operating requirements.  The Corporation prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has 
sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.  There has been no change to the risk exposures from 
2021. 

(b) Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss.  The Corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to the 
accounts receivable.  The Corporation assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts receivable 
and provides for any amounts that are collectible in the allowance for doubtful accounts. 

(c) Interest rate risk: 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is exposed to this risk 
mainly in respect of certain bank credit facilities. 

The Corporation has entered into interest rate swap contracts that entitles the Corporation to 
receive interest at floating rates on the notional principal amount and obliges it to pay interest at 
fixed rates of interest. 

There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or 
policies, procedures and methods used to measure the risk. 
  

DRAFT



SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING CORPORATION 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2022 
 
 

15 

12. Budget figures: 

The operating budget approved by the Corporation for 2022 was prepared for the purpose of 
establishing the estimated revenues and expenses for fiscal 2022 for the Sault Ste. Marie Housing 
Corporation. 

The consolidated budget figures presented in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and 
Accumulated Surplus and the Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Liabilities have 
been restated to be comparable with the Public Sector Accounting Standards.  A reconciliation of 
the Corporation’s approved budget and the consolidated budget presented in these financial 
statements is presented below: 
 

 
Adopted consolidated budget: 
 Consolidated budgeted annual surplus for the year  $ –    
 
Adjustments to adopted budget: 
 Acquisition of tangible capital assets   776,665 
 Amortization of tangible capital assets   (974,693) 
 
Budget deficit per consolidated statement of operations 
 and accumulated surplus  $ (198,028) 

 

13. Segmented reporting: 

The Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada - Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section 
PS2700 – Segmented Disclosures establishes standards on defining and disclosing segments in a 
government’s financial statements.  Government organizations that apply these standards are 
encouraged to provide the disclosures established by this section when their operations are diverse 
enough to warrant such disclosures.  The Corporation has only one identifiable segment, considered 
to be public housing and related services, as presented in these financial statements. 

14. Related party disclosure: 

The District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services Administration Board (“DSSAB”) controls the 
Corporation. The DSSAB provides administrative services and staffing to the Corporation each year. 
Amounts related to salaries, wages and benefits and certain administrative costs have not been 
recognized in the financial statements. 

15. Comparative information: 

Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform with the financial statement 
presentation adopted in the current year. 

 

DRAFT



 

AUTHOR: David Petersson

DATE: June 15, 2023 

RE:   SSMHC – Q1-2023 Financial Update 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation Board (SSMHC) accept this report as 
information. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Corporate Services provides annual and quarterly updates to the Board. We monitor 
year-to-date (YTD) spend to the Board approved budget. Financial updates to the Board 
are provided quarterly following this timeline: 

• Quarter 1 - June
• Quarter 2 - August
• Quarter 3 - November
• Quarter 4 – presented in 2024 as part of the annual Audited Financial

Statements

Monthly updates are provided to the Finance Committee for review. 

As well, Corporate Services will bring to the Board any matters having a financial impact 
on the SSMHC. 

SUMMARY/OVERVIEW 
Attached to this report is the financial update for Q1 – 2023.  At this time, overall we are 
under budget for the Net Subsidy to the DSSMSSAB.  Certain line items are facing 
pressures at this time and include: 

1. Materials and Supplies

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING 
CORPORATION  

BOARD REPORT
 



RE:           SSMHC – Q1-2023 Financial Update 
Page 2 
DATE: June 15, 2023 

Mike Nadeau 
Chief Executive Officer 

a. Snow ploughing – this is the main reason for the deficit in this line.  This is
a seasonal expense with the first quarter seeing much of that budget line
for the year.  As we enter spring and summer months, this expense line
will not change.

b. Move out Costs – there were significant costs related to move outs during
Q1 and are summarized as:

i. 74 Adrian Drive - $24,000
ii. 76 Adrian Drive - $20,500
iii. 83 Smale Avenue - $17,000
iv. 84 Murphy Street - $17,000

2. Utilities
a. Seasonal expenditures from Union Gas due to colder winter weather.

Expect decline in this line throughout spring and summer months.
3. Corporate Costs

a. Annual audit interim bill paid for in Q1
4. Capital Items

a. Very little capital expenditures through Q1 as much of the work planned
for Mid-year onward.

b. This area is the largest contributor to the surplus noted through Q1.

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT 
The Corporate Services division provides ongoing support for the SSMHC. We strive to 
line up our requirements, processes and procedures with those of the SSMHC to 
ensure alignment with the three pillars of the Strategic Plan, that being Organization 
Excellence, Service Delivery, and Community Partnerships. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications for the SSMHC. 

CONCLUSION 
Corporate Services will continue to monitor spending against the budget throughout the 
year with the intent of keeping costs in line with approved budget. 

Respectfully submitted, Approved by: 

Dave Petersson   
Director of Corporate Services 



Year To Date (YTD)

Annual 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actuals $ %

EXPENDITUES

Materials and Services Schedule 1 2,378,300.00 594,575.00                      713,728.72 (119,153.72)                    -20.04%

Utilities Note 1 2,050,000.00 512,500.00                      548,400.09 (35,900.09)                       -7.00%

Municipal Property Taxes 1,616,830.00 404,207.50                      349,510.70 54,696.80                        13.53%

Insurance 410,000.00 102,500.00                      83,835.74 18,664.26                        18.21%

Corporate Costs Note 2 256,355.00 64,088.75                        71,525.40 (7,436.65)                         -11.60%

Mortgage: Schedule 2

Principal 447,639.00 111,909.75                      60,364.98 51,544.77                        46.06%

Interest 334,780.00 83,695.00                        60,156.00 23,539.00                        28.12%

Capital Reserve Contribution Schedule 3 71,609.00 17,902.25                        17,903.28 (1.03)                                -0.01%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES A 7,565,513.00 1,891,378.25 1,905,424.91 (14,046.66)                   -0.74%

REVENUE/INCOME

Rental Revenue 5,617,400.00 1,404,350.00                  1,420,090.26 15,740.26                        1.12%

Tenant Recoveries 178,800.00 44,700.00                        59,510.55 14,810.55                        33.13%

Interest Income Note 3 75,000.00 18,750.00                        45,773.47 27,023.47                        144.13%

Other Revenue Note 4 180,217.00 45,054.25                        17,520.17 (27,534.08)                       -61.11%

Bad Debt Recoveries (Write-Offs) (101,000.00)                    (25,250.00)                       (32,483.34)                       (7,233.34)                         28.65%

TOTAL REVENUE/INCOME B 5,950,417.00 1,487,604.25 1,510,411.11 22,806.86                    1.53%

Net Operating Costs (A-B) 1,615,096.00 403,774.00                      395,013.80                      8,760.20                          2.17%

Capital Items 1,390,728.00 347,682.00                      52,745.59                        294,936.41                      0.85                       

Subsidy - from DSSMSSAB 3,005,824.00    751,456.00        447,759.39        303,696.61        40.41%

March 31, 2023

YTD Budget Variance

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC)

Prepared by: M.Comeault
Reviewed by: A.Borrelli
Approved by: D.Petersson

Page 1 of 5
5/29/2023



Year To Date (YTD)

Annual 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actuals $ %

March 31, 2023

YTD Budget Variance

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC)

Schedule 1

Materials & Services

    TOTAL MOVEOUT OPERATING Note 5 572,500.00 143,125.00                      206,161.94 (63,036.94)                       -44.04%

    TOTAL BM-BUILDING MAINTENANCE GENERAL 607,000.00 151,750.00                      129,291.68 22,458.32                        14.80%

    TOTAL BM-PLUMBING Note 6 152,000.00 38,000.00                        49,142.10 (11,142.10)                       -29.32%

    TOTAL BM-ELECTRICAL Note 7 97,000.00 24,250.00                        28,710.56 (4,460.56)                         -18.39%

    TOTAL BM-PAINTING Note 8 19,000.00 4,750.00                          6,063.69 (1,313.69)                         -27.66%

    TOTAL BM-HEATING Note 9 128,000.00 32,000.00                        38,658.93 (6,658.93)                         -20.81%

    TOTAL BM-ELEVATOR 45,000.00 11,250.00                        10,855.50 394.50                             3.51%

    TOTAL BM-LIFE SAFETY 110,000.00 27,500.00                        24,920.03 2,579.97                          9.38%

    TOTAL BM-WASTE REMOVAL 125,000.00 31,250.00                        28,175.77 3,074.23                          9.84%

    TOTAL BUILDING EQUIPMENT 70,000.00 17,500.00                        4,385.98 13,114.02                        74.94%

    TOTAL BUILDING INTERNET & PHONE 41,800.00 10,450.00                        9,893.68 556.32                             5.32%

    TOTAL BUILDING SUPPLIES 34,000.00 8,500.00                          1,653.15 6,846.85                          80.55%

    TOTAL GROUNDS SERVICES 65,000.00 16,250.00                        104.83 16,145.17                        99.35%

    TOTAL PM-VEHICLE EXPENSES 32,000.00 8,000.00                          4,782.62 3,217.38                          40.22%

    TOTAL SNOW PLOUGH & REMOVAL (SPR) Note 10 210,000.00 52,500.00                        160,476.75 (107,976.75)                    -205.67%

    TOTAL BUILDING SECURITY (BSEC) 70,000.00 17,500.00                        10,451.51 7,048.49                          40.28%

2,378,300.00 594,575.00 713,728.72 (119,153.72)                 -20.04%

Prepared by: M.Comeault
Reviewed by: A.Borrelli
Approved by: D.Petersson

Page 2 of 5
5/29/2023



Year To Date (YTD)

Annual 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actuals $ %

March 31, 2023

YTD Budget Variance

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC)

Schedule 2

Mortgage Costs (P+I)

49 St. Mary's River Drive

Principal 147,919.00                      36,979.75                        36,625.00                        354.75                             0.96%

Interest 150,924.00                      37,731.00                        38,085.34                        (354.34)                            -0.94%

Subtotal 298,843.00                      74,710.75                        74,710.34                        0.41                                  0.00%

159 Gibb Street

Principal 18,168.00                        4,542.00                          4,500.00                          42.00                               0.92%

Interest 17,266.75                        4,316.69                          4,358.65                          (41.96)                              -0.97%

Subtotal 35,434.75                        8,858.69                          8,858.65                          0.04                                  0.00%

672 Second Line West 

Principal 54,504.00                        13,626.00                        13,500.00                        126.00                             0.92%

Interest 51,800.25                        12,950.06                        13,075.94                        (125.88)                            -0.97%

Subtotal 106,304.25                      26,576.06                        26,575.94                        0.12                                  0.00%

39 Chapple Street

Principal 22,315.00                        5,578.75                          5,531.00                          47.75                               0.86%

Interest 19,189.00                        4,797.25                          4,845.05                          (47.80)                              -1.00%

Subtotal 41,504.00                        10,376.00                        10,376.05                        (0.05)                                0.00%

Community Services Building

Principal 22,247.00                        5,561.75                          -                                    5,561.75                          100.00%

Interest 52,145.00                        13,036.25                        -                                    13,036.25                        100.00%

Subtotal 74,392.00                        18,598.00                        -                                    18,598.00                        100.00%

New Office Building

Principal 69,627.00                        17,406.75                        -                                    17,406.75                        100.00%

Interest 156,314.00                      39,078.50                        -                                    39,078.50                        100.00%

Subtotal 225,941.00                      56,485.25                        -                                    56,485.25                        100.00%

782,419.00                  195,604.75                  120,520.98                  75,083.77                    38.39%

Prepared by: M.Comeault
Reviewed by: A.Borrelli
Approved by: D.Petersson

Page 3 of 5
5/29/2023



Year To Date (YTD)

Annual 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-23

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actuals $ %

March 31, 2023

YTD Budget Variance

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC)

Schedule 3

Capital Reserve Contribution

49 St. Mary's River Drive 64,389.06 16,097.27                        16,097.28 (0.02)                                0.00%

136 Pilgrim Street 3,870.00 967.50                             966.00 1.50                                  0.16%

46 Wellington Street East 3,350.00 837.50                             840.00 (2.50)                                -0.30%

71,609.06 17,902.27 17,903.28 -1.02 -0.01%

Capital Items

Appliances for 721 Wellington CSB (2023-05) 21,131.48                        (21,131.48)                       

Tankless Hot Water Tank Upgrades (2023-07) 1,678.02                          (1,678.02)                         

Foundation Repairs (2023-13) 13,222.02                        (13,222.02)                       

Bathroom Upgrades (2023-16) 27,542.35                        (27,542.35)                       

Furnace/Boiler Replacements (2023-18) 10,303.20                        (10,303.20)                       

1,390,728.00               347,682.00                  52,745.59                    (52,745.59)                   -15.17%

Prepared by: M.Comeault
Reviewed by: A.Borrelli
Approved by: D.Petersson

Page 4 of 5
5/29/2023



Year To Date (YTD)

Utilities Note 1

Corporate Costs Note 2

Interest Income Note 3

Other Revenue Note 4

    TOTAL MOVEOUT OPERATING Note 5

    TOTAL BM-PLUMBING Note 6

    TOTAL BM-ELECTRICAL Note 7

    TOTAL BM-PAINTING Note 8

    TOTAL BM-HEATING Note 9

    TOTAL SNOW PLOUGH & REMOVAL (SPR) Note 10

Seasonal expenditure.  Expect costs to level off with Spring and Summer season.

We have been invoiced for a portion of the annual audit. Expect costs to level off as the year goes on.

Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation (SSMHC)
March 31, 2023

Seasonal expenditure.  Expect costs to level off with Spring and Summer season.

Union Gas expenditures up in January - March due to colder temperatures & winter season.  Expect decline in Spring 

and Summer season.

Higher than expected interest income due to higher interest rates (bank deposit interest revenue).

Several costly moveouts due to severely damaged units.

74 Adrian Drive - $24,000;  76 Adrian Drive - $20,500;   83 Smale Avenue - $17,000;  84 Murphy Street - $17,000

Holdover from December 2022 issued in January 2023.

Holdover from December 2022 issued in January 2023.

Included in Other Revenue is a budgeted amount of $74,392 which represents Rent Revenue from the DSSMSAB for the 

Community Services Building to fund the Mortgage.  This is projected to commence July 1st , 2023, therefore no 

revenue to reflect at this time.

Graffiti cover up, water leak repairs, mold cleanup including drywall repairs.

Prepared by: M.Comeault
Reviewed by: A.Borrelli

Page 5 of 5
Approved by: D.Petersson

5/29/2023



 

AUTHOR: Jeff Barban

DATE:

RE:

June 15, 2023 

  Divestment of 162 Dennis St. to Habitat for Humanity for Affordable Home 
Ownership 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation divest itself of the vacant 
property located 162 Dennis Street in Sault Ste. Marie to Habitat for Humanity Sault Ste. 
Marie and Area (HFHSSMA) for $1.00 for the purpose of supplying affordable home 
ownership. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

This will be the 4th property divested to HFHSSMA and continues to support the District 
of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services Administration Boar’s (DSSMSSAB) 10 year Housing 
and Homelessness Plan objectives: 

 Objective 1.1 Expand access to Affordable housing in the service area.

 Objective 1.1.7 Explore opportunities to partner with non-profit organizations to
build additional affordable ownership housing for low and moderate income
families.

SUMMARY/OVERVIEW 
The SSMHC and the District of Sault Ste. Marie Social Services Administration Board 
(DSSMSSAB) cannot end homelessness alone. Taking opportunities to collaborate with 
local agencies is a step towards working together to expand affordable housing for 
families within the district at an increased rate.  Housing Services is recommending the 
SSMHC to divest the properties to HFHSSMA for the purposes of providing home 
ownership opportunities for families and individuals in need of decent, affordable 
housing.  

SAULT STE. MARIE HOUSING 
CORPORATION  

BOARD REPORT
 



RE:           Divestment of 162 Dennis St. to Habitat for Humanity for Affordable Home 
Ownership 
Page 2 
DATE: June 16, 2022 

Mike Nadeau 
Chief Executive Officer 

Both HFHSSMA and Housing Services believe that every parent, person and child 
have a decent shelter they need to thrive. Families who partner with HFHSSMA are 
selected at a local level and come from a variety of backgrounds and contribute to 
building and improving places to call home.   

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT 
The strategic plan is impacted by this initiative within the pillars of Organizational 
Excellence; Innovation and Community Partnerships; Shared Outcome Planning. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no net financial implications to the SSMHC. The costs incurred for the purchase 
and demolition of the home located on 162 Dennis St. was allocated from the demolition 
fund provided by the DSSMSSAB. 

CONCLUSION 
Families in need of affordable housing live everywhere in our community. Housing 
need presents itself wherever people live and work, and it takes many forms and 
has far-reaching effects. 

The SSMHC cannot work alone to meet the goals of the DSSAB’s 10 year Housing 
and Homelessness plan. By collaborating with HFHSSMA this will help to increase 
the number of affordable homes available in the district and reduce the burden on 
many of our social services by providing the necessary safe affordable housing to 
ensure families flourish. 

Respectfully submitted, Approved by: 

Jeff Barban  
Director of Community Housing and Development                       


	June 2023 SSMHC Board Package
	2.1 Agenda SSMHC MEETING June 15, 2023
	REGULAR AGENDA
	Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation

	23-035 agenda
	23-036 Minutes
	23-037 Audit
	23-038 HFHSSMA
	23-039 Closed
	23-040 Open
	23-041 Adjourn
	CS Board Report 2023 06 15. SSMHC Audited Financials 2022 12 31
	PUBLISHED SSMHC MEETING May 18, 2023
	REGULAR AGENDA
	Sault Ste. Marie Housing Corporation

	SSM Housing Corporation-Dec22-FINAL

	SSMHC 06.16.23 HFHSSMA Divest 162  Dennis St



